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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Board of Directors of 
Options, Inc. and Affiliates 

Hammond, Louisiana 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinions 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Options, Inc. (a nonprofit 
organization), and its Affiliates which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 
30, 2023 and 2022, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows 
for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of Options, Inc. and its Affiliates as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, and the 
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. Our responsibilities under those standards are fizther described in the 
Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
required to be independent of Options, Inc. and its Affiliates and to meet our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and 
for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 
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In preparing the financial statcmcnts, management is required to cvaluate whether there are 
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate. that raise substantial doubt about Options. Inc. 
and its Affiliates ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the 
financial statements are available to be issucd. 

Auditon' Revonsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives arc to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditors-  report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but 
is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a cmarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from enor, as fraud may involve collusion, foreety, intentional omissions. 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstaternents are considered material if 
there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the 
judgment made by a reasonable user based on thc fmancial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Governnwnt 
Auditing Standards, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticisrn throughout the 
audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of mateftal misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. 
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriatc in the circumstances. but ilot for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Options, Inc. and Affiliates' internal 
control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablcness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall 
presentation of the fmancial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the 
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Options, inc. and Affiliates' ability to 
continue as a Qoing concern for a reasonable time. 

Wc are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal 
control relatcd matters that we identified during the audit. 



Supplementary Information 

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a 
whole. The accompanying Schedule of Compensation, Benefits, and Other Payments to the 
Chief Executive Officer on page 26 and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards on 
page 35, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles. and Audit Requirements fir Federal Awardv, is 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a requircd part of the financial 
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and 
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 
the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling 
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
Financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our 
opinion, the intbrmation is fairly stated, in all material respects. in relation to the financial 
statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards-, we have also issued our report dated 
December 29, 2023, on our consideration of Options, Inc. and Affiliates' internal control over 
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts. and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe 
the scope of our testing of intemal control over financial reporting and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Options. Inc. and 
AMliates' internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral 
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering 
Options, Inc. and Affiliates' internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Metairie. Louisiana 
December 29, 2023 
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OPTIONS, INC. AND AFFILIATES 

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 

 

2(123 

 

2022 

    

Cash and cash equivalents 1 2.615M3 

 

1.373.689 
Restricted Lash and cash ecpuvaletits 

 

1145,860 

 

166.339 
At.counts ieceivable 

    

Ciovernment contract% 

 

4X1,8'3 

 

397.161 
Odier 

 

22,264 

 

33.325 
UnLontlitional promises 141 give 

 

526.63S 

 

456.480 
hnretuory 

 

-1113 

 

4.173 
Investments 

 

1.5O.281 

 

1.6(11.932 
hivesn)ents-cetnficates t.f deposit 

 

53,859 

 

31.859 
Prepani expenses 

 

I9.(i?8 

 

23.603 

Total current assets 

 

5.538,479 S 4.6-10.631 

LAND PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 1, 5 834.b95 S 5.537.557 
Less accumulated depteciation and amortization 

 

(3.024.179) 

 

(2.773.423i 
Total hind. property and equmment S 2 810.716 S 2.764.434 

OTHER ASSETS 
lAconditional promises to give. less all)wance fot iloutaftil accounts 

 

588.134 S 568.198 
Invesuileitts-restricteil 

 

13.526 

 

13.526 
Total other assets 

 

601.660 S 581.724 

Total assets 1, 8.950,855 S 7.986.769 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

    

CURRENT LIABILITIES 

    

Accounts payable 

 

96.425 S 143.167 
Tinst held for 4 Idlers 

 

114.723 

 

102,966 
Other payables 

 

6.055 

 

6,256 
Accrued salaries. leave and payroll taxes 

 

353.170 

 

375.711 
Total current liabilities 

 

599.373 S 631.100 

LONG TERM LIABILIIIES 
Tenants' security deposit.. 

 

2.032 S 1.932 
Total long term liabilities 

 

2,032 S 1.932 

Total liabilities 5 601;105 S 633.032 

NET ASSETS 

    

Witht donor lest] tion.s 

    

Unilesignated S 7.220.152 S 6.192.053 
Desikniated 

    

With di 11101' iesti1431411144 

 

l.I29.295 

 

1.161.704 
Total net assets 

 

.349.45(1 ti .35 3 .7..;1 

Total liabilities and net assets 

 

950.s55 5 7  986.789 

See Notes to Financial Statentents. 
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OPTIONS, INC. AND AFFILIATES 

COMBINED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

REVENUES, GAINS AND CH HER SUPPORT 

  

Without Donor 

Restrictions 

With Donor 

Restrictions Total 

    

Medicaid 

 

$ 6.333,382 S - S 6.333.382 

Grants and contracts: 

     

Federal 

  

332,356 

 

332.356 

State 

  

479,449 - 479,449 

Contributions 

  

210,395 121,000 331.395 

Fund-raising income 

  

588,821 90,094 678.915 

Private pay client revenue 

  

77,003 - 72,003 

Vocational rehabilitation 

  

8,250 

 

8.250 

Vocational contracts $ 640,702 

    

Less: cast of scrviccs (3 I 9.122) 

    

Vocational contracts gross profit 

  

321,580 

 

321,580 

Rental revenue 

  

18,1 61 

 

18.161 

Management and maintenance fee 

    

6.760 

Investment loss 

  

(126389° 30) 

 

(12.893) 

Gain on sale of assets 

  

(14.654) 

 

(14.654) 

Other income 

  

24,482 

 

24.482 

Employee rentention credit and interest 

  

I.078.065 

 

1.078.065 

Net assets released frorn restrictions 

Expiration of usc restriction 

Expiration of time restriction 

  

123.500 

120.000 

(123,500) 

(120.000) 

 

Total revenues, gains. and other support 

  

9,689,657 (32,4061 $ 9,657.251 

EXPENSES 

     

Program services 

     

Residential services 

  

2,284.632 $ - $ 2,284.632 

Vocational services 

  

2,165,338 

 

2,165,338 

Individualized services 

  

3.648.983 

 

3,648.983 

Housing services 

  

56,677 

 

56.677 

Support Sendces 

     

Management and general 

  

335,165 

 

335.165 

Fund-raising 

  

170.763 

 

170,763 

Total expenses 

 

$ 8.661.558 $ - $ 8,661.558 

Chanee in nct asscts 

 

$ 1.028.099 $ (32.406) $ 995.693 

Net assets at beginning of year 

  

6,192,053 1,161,704 7.353,757 

Net assets at end of year 

 

$ 7.220.152 $ 1,129,298 $ 8.349,450 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 

     



OPTIONS, INC. AND AFFILIA rEs 

COMBINED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

REVENUES. GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT 

  

Without Donor 
Restrictions 

With Donor 
Restrictions Total 

    

N4edicaid 

  

5,799,380 S $ 5,799,380 
Grants and contracts: 

     

Federal 

  

932,985 

 

932,985 
State 

  

398,690 

 

398.690 
Contributions 

  

351,451 243.500 594,951 
Fund-raising income 

  

504.289 

 

504.289 
Private pay clients 

  

47.396 

 

47.396 
Vocational rehabilitation 

  

3.750 

 

3.750 
Vocational contracts S 545,998 

    

Less: Cost of sewices (315,432) 

    

Vocational contracts gross profit 

  

230,566 

 

130,566 
Rental revenue 

  

11,128 

 

11,128 
Management and maintenance fee 

  

7,379 

 

7,379 
Investment loss 

  

(126,914) 

 

(126.914) 
Gain on sale of asset 

  

21,007 

 

21.007 
Other income 

  

16,968 

 

16,968 
Gain from PPP loan extinguishment 

  

1,266,170 

 

1,266,170 
Net assets released from restrictions 

Expiration of time restriction 

  

120,683 (120,683) 

 

Total revenues, gains, and other support 

  

9,584,928 $ 122,317 S 9,707.745 

F.XPENSES 

     

Program sci-v ices 

     

Residential services 

  

2,295,071 $ - x 2,295,071 
Vocational services 

  

2,025,365 

 

2,025.365 
Individualized set-vices 

  

3,752,587 

 

3,752.587 
Housing services 

  

65,970 

 

65,970 
Support services 

     

Nlanagement and general 

  

237,680 

 

237.680 
Fund-raising 

  

176,153 

 

176,153 

Total expenses 

 

$ 8,552,826 $ - $ 8,552.826 

Changc in net assets 

 

$ L032,102 $ 122,817 $ 1,154,919 

Net assets at beginning of year 

  

5.159,951 1,038,887 6,198,838 

Net asscts at end of year 

 

$ 6J 92,053 S 1,161,704 $ 7,353,757 

See Notcs to Financial Statements. 

     



OPI'IONS, INC. AND AFFILIATES 

COMBINED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

Salaries and related expenses: 

Proaram Sery ees 

Residential 

Services 

Vocational 

Services 

  

Salaries S 1.314.771 $ 1.247.557 

Employee benefits & taxes 125.424 175,458 

Workers' compensation l 9.706 19.689 

 

1,459.901 1.442,704 

Advertisina 

 

100 

Bank fees 370 4.398 

Cost of sales 

 

317.359 

Uncollectible pledges 

  

Bed tax 123.208 

 

Crisis intervention 

  

Depreciation 49,449 160,693 

Dues, licenses, and subscriptions 6,360 5,526 

Employee compliance 3,858 

 

Food and supplies 83,455 4,001 

Fund raisina 

l ousekeepi ng supplies 13,496 1,941 

Insurance 

  

Liability 31.517 36.294 

Motor vehicle 31,705 121.687 

Other property 31.440 78.453 

Manyt2etnent and maintenance fee 

  

Medical consultants 42.353 

 

Medical supplics 36.528 3.859 

Medina expense 85 

 

Miscellaneous 21.511 26.622 

Motor vehicle expenses 5.766 I 63.096 

Non capital equipnlent 70.432 10.165 

Office supplies 4,404 5,983 

Other resident expenses 12.147 6.039 

Other supplies 

  

Postage 801 863 

Professional services I 85.753 49.569 

Rent 

 

24,531 

Repairs and maintenance 46,607 16.736 

Telephone 25.053 18.186 

.1 ravel and transportat kat 3,764 7.137 

Seminars and trainina 234 

 

Utilities 44.435 76.7c c 

 

S 824,731 1,039.993 
Less expenscs (cost) dcducted from 

revenues on statement of activities 

 

I3 I 7,359) 

Total expenses, net of cost of sales 2,284.632 S 7,16c.338 

Scc Notes to Financial Statements. 

  



Program Sery ices Supporting SeMies 

 

Total 

Individualizcd 

Services 

 

Housind 

Services 

Management 

and General 

Fund-

 

raising 

$ 2,973.122 S 

 

$ 93,317 S 109.225 $ 5.737,992 

342,004 

  

15,314 14,644 

 

672.844 

29.121 

  

(689) 163 

 

67.990 

3.344.217 S 

 

107.912 S 124.032 S 6.478,826 

- 

  

7.224 S $ 7,324 

396 

  

16,407 

  

21.571 

   

1.763 

  

319,122 

- 

 

- 6.109 

  

6,109 

- 

 

- - 

  

123,208 

  

- 136.328 

  

136,328 

18,252 

 

24,459 8.3 56 

  

261.209 

24,813 

 

- 12.616 

  

49,315 

9.811 

  

503 

  

14.172 

1.793 

  

1.309 - 

 

90,558 

- 

  

- 46.731 

 

46,731 

66 

  

7 - 

 

15,510 

33.917 

  

3.744 

  

105,472 

  

- - 

  

153.392 

6,818 

 

8,707 (4,430) 

  

70.988 

- 

 

5.252 - 

  

5,757 

- 

 

- 200 

  

42.553 

1,206 

  

597 

  

42,190 

   

- 

  

85 

26.281 

 

1.578 4,347 

  

80.334 

  

- 54 

  

168,916 

15,132 

  

5.250 

  

50.979 

1.482 

  

6,173 

  

21.042 

1,195 

 

- 3.143 

  

22,524 

- 

 

3(I - 

  

30 

1,264 

 

- 3,942 

  

6.870 

54,220 

 

1.600 6,545 

  

297,687 

  

- - 

  

24.531 

11.717 

 

10.169 1.514 

  

86.743 

18,812 

 

606 2,193 

  

64,850 

48,232 

 

- 2.577 

  

61,710 

8.219 

 

- 208 

  

8,661 

18,110 

 

1,276 2,312 - 

 

95,888 

304,736 S 56,677 $ 228,986 $ 46,731 

 

2,501,854 

   

(1,763) 

  

(319.122) 

3,648.983 

 

56,677 $ 335.165 S 170.763 $ 8.661,558 

-7-

 



OP HONS. INC. AND AFIILLA IES 

COMBINED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAI. EXPENSES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2022 

Salaries and related expenses: 

Program Services 

Residential 

Services 

Vocational 

Services 

  

Salaries S 1,464.775 5 1.143.744 

Employee benefits & taxes 138.709 176.277 

Workers compensation 42,748 34,586 

 

S 1.645.687 1,354.607 

Advertising 

 

52 

Bank fccs 206 2.344 

Cost of sales 

 

315,432 

1.Incol ler:title pledges 

  

Bcd tax 136,419 

 

Crisis intervention 

  

Deprec iaticar 40.694 162.763 

Dues. licenses, and subscriptions 6.588 8,045 

Employee compliance 4.382 

 

Food and supplies 69,747 

 

Fund raising 

  

Housekeeping supplies 12.975 1,698 

Insurance 

  

Liability 33,413 36.102 

Motor vehicle 21.057 I 17,789 

Other property 29.146 24.486 

Management and maintenance fee 

  

Medical consultants 39,46 I 

 

Medical supplies 28.811 1.670 

Meeting expense 15 14 

M iscel laneous 16,876 11.783 

Motor vehicle expenses 8,066 146.382 

Non capital equipment 14,608 11.955 

Office supplies 2,831 4.341 

Other resident expenses 13,050 6,366 

Other supplies 

 

2.220 

Postage 1,1107 923 

Professional seraice> 54.887 38.759 

Rent 175 22.321 

Repairs and maintenance 43,552 21,171 

•Yelephone 23,228 I 9.7  I 7 

Travel and transportation 4,549 3.580 

Seminars and trainine 179 

 

Utilities 43,47-Y 24.155 

 

S 649,389 S 986.190 
Less expenses (cost) deducted from 

revenues on statement of activities 

 

(315.4321 

Total expenses, net of cost of sales S 7,795,071 S 2,025365 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 

  



Program Seridccs Supporting Services 

 

Total 

Individualized 

Services 

 

Housing 

Services 

Management 

and General 

Fund-

 

raising 

$ 3,042,312 $ 

 

53,758 $ 111.250 5 5,81 5,289 

353.589 

  

6,034 17.098 

 

691,707 

64,132 

  

544 211 

 

142,221 

3.460.033 

  

60,336 5 128.559 

 

6.649,217 

$ $ 

 

13,891 S $ 13,943 

   

13,022 

  

15.572 

   

- 

  

315,432 

   

10,544 

  

10.544 

- 

 

- - 

  

136.419 

- 

  

91.025 

  

91,025 

18.473 

 

24,459 6,085 

  

252.474 

27.161 

 

- 4,628 

  

46.422 

11.609 

  

302 

  

16.293 

1,604 

  

438 - 

 

74.411 

- 

  

- 47.594 

 

47,594 

267 

  

6 - 

 

14.946 

38.839 

  

394 

  

108.748 

      

138.846 

4.385 

 

8,322 1.052 

  

67.39 

  

vsa 

   

5.7 57 

      

39.461 

1821 

     

33.302 

25 

     

54 

23,154 

 

1,727 431 

  

53.971 

      

154.448 

17.508 

  

7.297 

  

51.368 

3,463 

  

2.726 

  

13.361 

400 

     

19.816 

   

4.079 

  

6.299 

1,652 

  

3.556 

  

7,133 

46.877 

 

7.009 491 

  

148.023 

292 

     

77,788 

13,478 

 

14,502 568 

  

93,271 

17,151 

 

661 860 

  

61.117 

38.557 

  

1,518 

  

48,204 

4.733 

  

14,431 

  

19.343 

20,105 

 

4,038 

   

91,770 

5 292.554 $ 65.970 $ 177.344 $ 47,594 

 

2,219,041 

      

(315,432) 

S 3,752,587 $ 65.970 $ 237.680 S 176.153 

 

8,552,826 



OPTIONS. INC. AND AFFILIATES 

C.OMAINED STATF.MENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022 

 

2023 

 

2022 

CASI I FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIATFIES 

Change In net assets 995.693 

 

14 54,919 

Forgiveness of Paycheck Protection Prepant loan 

  

(1.266,I 70) 

AdjusInients te reconcile change in net assels 

to net rash provided by operating activIttes. 

   

Deprectation 26 I.209 

 

252,474 

(Gam) loss on sale of asscts 14654 

 

(21,007) 

Unrealized (gain) loss on investments 144 22 

 

127,931 

(Increase) decmase in operatinn assets 

Accounts receithle (73601) 

 

( 54,567) 

Promises to give (90,094? 

 

OI0,317) 

Prepaid expenses 3,965 

 

23,274 

Inventory 

  

4,121 

Increase feeerease) in operatine liabilities• 

   

Accounts payable (46,742? 

 

30,819 

Tmst hcld fnr ethers 1 I .757 

 

20,597 

Other payables (1,201) 

 

(3,990) 

Accrued salartes and pa?, rua taxds 4.459 

 

(20,846) 

Tenants' security deposits 100 

 

(2I1) 

Net cash provided by operating act ities $ I ,094,321 S 128,027 

CASH I-LOWS I- ROM INVESTING MEE \THE?" 

   

Purchases nf investments 26,066 S (661) 

Redemption of es-nit-Icahn of deposit 83.85,9 

 

84.886 

Purchases of certificate of deposit (83,859) 

 

(83.8591 

Proceeds Itom the sale of assets 

  

30.721 

Purchases of property and edhipment (358,632) 

 

II60,993 I 

Net cash used In tarestrramt inett Imes (332,5661 S (129,906) 

Net increase (decrease] in cush. cash edurnEents and rrslneted cash S 761,755 S il.879) 

Dego-mono cash, cash cqdtvalcsms and tontroted cash 2,040045 

 

2,)41.927 

Ending cash, cash ?equivalents and restricted cash S 2,801,803 S 2,04(O48 

Cash. Lash inouttlunts and restricted caqh is of June 3U, 2023 and 2022 consist of the folloynng: 

   

Cash and cash equivalents S 2,615,943 5 1,873,689 

Cash restricted for: 

   

Cash restrtcted tor nmst S 116186 S 103.328 

Tenants' security deposits 2.033 

 

1d)33 

Cash restricted for ftscflts 21796 

 

20.214 

Cash restrIcted for residual recetpts 44.745 

 

40.884 

S 185.26C S I 66,359 

Tmal cash. cash equivalents and I-esti-IL:lei eusn S 2,60"i .803 5 2:34:O48 

See Notts to Financial Statements. 



OPTIONS, INC. AND AFFILIATES 
COMBINED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022 

NOTE 1. SURIDZARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Nature of the Organization  

Options, lnc. is a local. 501(c)(3) non-profit organization that was established in 1973, by 
parents looking for community-based services for their children with disabilities. 
Options. Inc. continually seeks ways to evolve to respond to the current needs of the 
people served in the community. There are a variety of opportunities at Options. lnc. to 
best serve the individual needs of each person with a disability. 

The mission of Options, Inc. is to help people with disabilities live and work in the 
comnmnity. Since inception, Options. Inc. has been improving the lives of hundreds of 
people with disabilities through maximizing life skills, meaningful work and activities. 
Community inclusion, and providina support beyond the family. Options, Inc. offers the 
following services: 

Residential Services  

Options, Inc. operates four conmiunity homes. Each home provides a nurturing and 
supportive atmosphere for six individuals with developmental disabilities to call home. 
Two of the homes are for women and two are for men. The homes providc an opportunity 
for people with complex needs to live with peers in their communities. The locations 
were chosen to maxirnize access to the community and provide a unique neighborhood 
experience for residents. Each home is staffed around the clock to ensure the care and 
safety needs of residents are met. All four conmiunity homes have been successfully 
operating fin-  over 25 years. 

Vocational Services 

Enrichment — Wellness Program 

The Wellness Program provides engaging, meaningful activities for individuals 
with disabilities through recreation and involvement in the community. Every 
week, Monday-Friday, people with disabilities participate in a variety of 
enrichment activities including weaving, gardening, swimming, water aerobics, 
bowling, walking-for-fitness, art, book club, 7.umba, and volunteer opportunities. 
This program promotes self-esteem and helps develop social skills. Through 
involvement. participants build relationships with comniunity members and have 
the opportunity to explore their unique interests and talents. Confidence, 
leadership skills, and involvement in community projects, volunteerism, 
employment, and entrepreneurship are a few of the successes. The impact of the 
program is evident through the demand for the program from both participants 
and family members. 
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NOTE 1. SUMLMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOLNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Meaninaful Work: Job Placement & Supported Employment 

Options, Inc. provides people with disabilities with meaningful work 
opportunities through job placement and supported employment. Through thc job 
plac.ement prograrn, people with disabilities are able to have competitive jobs in 
the community through job placement, job coaching. and ongoing support. They 
work at businesses such as banks, offices, grocery stores, restaurants, retail stores, 
and government agencies. People with disabilities also have jobs through the 
supported employment program. These individuals work on Cleaning Crews, 
Lawn Maintenance Crew, Learning Gardens, Weavina Studio, and at Fabulous 
Finds. In our rural community, jobs can be scarce, especially for people with 
disabilities. Over 80% of people with disabilities in the U.S. are not employed and 
this program is just one solution to this problem. Options, Inc. seeks opportunities 
and contracts with arca businesses or starts new businesses to directly employ 
people with disabilities. 

Transportation Services 

The Transportation Program is an essential ingredient to the success of all of the 
programs and services. Most of the people who are served at Options, lnc. do not 
drive, so transportation is a very important service. A tleet of vehicles goes the 
distance to bring people with disabilities where thev nccd to go, whether it be to a 
doctor's appointment, a community job, or an enrichment activity. Some of the 
participants of the program live with their families and Options, Inc. picks them 
up each morrting and brings them home in the afternoon. Other clients live in 
Option Inc.'s community homes or in their own apartments or homes and we not 
only provide transportation durina the day but whenever they need it. With routes 
that span two rural parishes (counties), careful planning and coordination play a 
huge role in creating the most efficient and safest routes possible. Fulfilling the 
ever-evolving transportation needs of participants require complex plaiming and 
coordination. Specialized training is on-going for our transportation drivers. 
Training includes, but is not limited to, how to handle seizures, behavioral issues, 
hcalth and safety, CPR/First Aid, and much more. Transportation is more than a 
wav to get from point A to point 8, it's critical to accomplishing the mission of 
Options, lnc. It is a lifclinc for people with disabilities to access employment, 
education, health care, and community life. For most of our participants, 
transportation is synonymous with quality of life. 

OPTIONS Weaving Studio 

The Weaving Studio was founded by volunteers in 2012. Volunteers and staff 
enthusiastically worked together to develop the Weaving Studio as a wonderful. 
fim place for people with disabilities to explorc their creativity and artistic skills. 
Today it is both an employment opportunity and an enrichment activity. Several 
individuals havc started their own businesses in partnerships with Options, Inc. 
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Weaving Studio. They work with Options, Inc.'s marketing team to develop their 
business cards, price tags, and marketing materials. They make rugs. table 
rurmers, handbags, towels, ancl many other beautiful iterns. See OPTIONS 
Weaving Studio Facebook page for more details. Options, Inc. is proud to offer a 
curting-edge opportunity to people with disabilities to explore their creativity. 

OPTIONS Learning Gardens 

The Learning Gardens was estahlished in Januaiy 2020. The purpose of the 
Learning Gardens is to focus on nurturing the rnind, body, and soul of people with 
disabilities through therapeutic gardening. The Learning Gardens is an inclusive 
program that allows participants to engage in aardening activities while learning 
farm to table concepts. Also, the Learning Gardens provide employment for 
individuals with disabilities. The individuals with disabilities that are employed 
by The Learning Gardens assist the Learning Gardens Instructor during activities 
with their peers. The Learning Gardens Program has been a great success in 
meeting the needs of those with sensory challenaes. The environment created 
promotes an educational and peaceful atinosphere. 

OPTIONS Fabulous Finds 

Located in Ponchatoula, OPTIONS Fabulous Finds is a gently used, upscale 
resale store. People from the community donate clothes and other items and the 
individuals with disabilities who are ernployed there sort the donated items, 
maintain store inventory, and assist customers. The store is open to the public 
Monday—Saturday. For more information, visit OPTIONS Fabulous Finds 
Facebook page. Options, Inc. has successfully operated OPTIONS Fabulous Finds 
since 2012. 

Individualized Services 

Supported Independent Living Program 

The Supported independent Living program assists individuals with intellectual 
and developmental disabilities to live in the community as independently as 
possible. The philosophy of Options, Inc. is to support, assist, and meet the needs 
of each person based on his or her unique needs and goals. Options, Inc. oilers 
services that are tailored to eaeh person's individual needs, wants, and skills. 
Program participants receive assistance with finding housing and negotiating 
lease tenns. navigating home ownership, financial case management, health and 
wellness coaching and support, medical case management, in-home personal care, 
transportation, and any other services needed in order to maintain the highest 
level of independence for that person. Options, Inc. has been meeting the needs of 
people with disabilities through its Supported Independent Living Program since 
1985. 
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continucd) 

Health and Wellness Program  

The Health and Wellness Program has a team of nurses who oversee many 
aspects of client care, including proactive/preventative care, health management, 
and medical advocacy. All people with disabilities, especially those who are non-
verbal, are vulnerable. Many of them cannot tell anyone when they are in pain or 
that they arc having physical or emotional difficulties. lt requires keen 
observation, excellent training, and extensive knowledge of each individual to 
recognize a potential problem. By providing our staff, clients, and clients' 
families with health and wellness education, training, and support, we enable 
them to make well-informed decisions regarding the well-being of each person 
served. 

Family Support Services 

Options, Inc. provides individuals with disabilities, who live with their families, 
support that enhance their quality of life and assist their caregivers. Family 
Support includes assistance with activities of daily living, meal preparation, 
hygiene, light housekeeping, transportation, and opportunities to participate in 
community activities. These services support the farnily care givers thus enabling 
thern to maintain their own jobs, care for their other children, and take needed 
breaks. Participants enjoy the opportunity to pursue interests outside of the 
family. Options, Inc. has been providing Family Support Services since 1991. 

Foundation 

Foundation to Ensure the Future of Options, inc. is a separate 501(c)(3) organization that 
oversccs Pooled Special Needs Trusts and assists with the long-term funding goals of 
Options, Inc. 

Housing Services 

C'est Tres Bon! is a separate 501(c)(3) organization that serves as the governing board 
for Section 811 HUD apartments (6 units) located on Crisp Road in Hammond. Options, 
Inc. is the management company. 

Combined Financial Statements  

The financial statements have been combined to include all accounts of Options, Inc. and 
its affiliates. Options, Inc., wholly owned affiliates include the following: 

• Foundation to Ensure the Future of Options, Inc. 
• C'est Tres Bon!, Inc. 

For the purpose of this report, Options, Inc. and Affiliates will be refen-ed to as "the 
Organization." 
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JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022 

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Financial Statement Presentation 

The Organization follows the financial staternent presentation recommended by the 
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification 
(ASC.) topic 958, Not-for-Profit Entities. The Organization reports information regarding 
its fmancial position and activities according to two classes of net assets that are based 
upon the existence or absence of restrictions on use that are placed by its donors: net 
assets without donor restrictions and net assets with donor restrictions. 

Net assets without donor restrictions - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed 
restrictions and niay be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of 
the Organization. These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization's 
management and the board of directors. The revenues received in conducting the mission 
of the Organization is included in this categoiy. 

Net assets with donor restrictions -- Net assets subjcct to stipulations irnposed by donors 
and grantors. Sorne donor restrictions are tempormy in nature, those restrictions will be 
met by actions of the Organization or by the passage of dine. Other donor restrictions arc 
perpetual in nature, whereby, the donor has stipulated thesc fimds be maintained in 
perpetuity. 

The accompanying cornbined fmancial statements include the accounts of Options, Inc. 
and its affiliated organizations, Cest Tres Bon!. Inc. and Foundation to Ensure the Future 
of Options, Inc. All significant inter-organization transactions and balances have been 
eliminated in consolidation. 

Basis of Accounting 

The combined financial staternents of the Organization havc been prepared on the accrual 
basis of accounting and, accordingly, reflect all significant receivables. payables, and 
other liabilities. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all highly liquid 
investments \vith an initial maturitv of three months or less to be cash and cash 
equivalents. 

Inventory  

Inventory is earned at cost and cons sts of janitorial and office supplies. 

Restricted Cash 

Restricted cash consists of balances in cash accounts that are required by loan, operating 
agreements, and donor restrictions. 
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGMFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Accounts Receivable  

Accounts receivables are stated at the amount management expect to collect from 
outstanding balances. Management provides l'or probable uncollectible amounts through 
a provision for bad dcbt expense and an adjustment to a valuation allowance based on its 
assessment of the current status of individual accounts. Balances that are still 
outstandin2 after management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off 
through a charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. 
Allowance for doubtthl accounts was $0 for the years ended June 30. 2023 and 2022. 

Promises to Give  

Unconditional promises to give are recognized as revenue in the period in which a 
written or oral a2reement to contribute cash or other assets is received. Conditional 
promises to give are not recognized until they become unconditional; that is, when the 
donor-irnposed conditions are substantially met. The Organization distinguishes between 
contributions received for each net asset category with donor-imposed restrictions. An 
allowance for doubtful accounts is established based on the prior collection histoty and 
management's analysis of specific promises made. Pledges are also discounted to the 
anticipatcd net present value of future cash flows. The allowance for doubtful accounts 
for pledges was $58,620 and $53.930 for the ycars cnded June 30, 2023 and 2022, 
respectively. The discount for pledges was $132,270 and $230,630 for the years ended 
June 30, 2023 and 9022. 

Estimates  

Managernent uses estimated and assumptions in preparing the combined financial 
statements. Those estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities;  the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported revenue and 
expenses. Actual results could differ from those estimates in the near tenn. 

Functional Expenses  

Directly identifiable expenses are charged to programs and supportin2 services. 
Expenses related to more than one function are charged to programs and supporting 
services on the basis of periodic time and expense studies. Management and general 
expenses include those expenses that are not directly identifiable with any specific 
function but provide for the overall support and direction of the Organization. 

Advertising 

The Cornpany expenses advertising costs as they are incurred. Advertisin2 expenses for 
the vears ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, were S7,324 and $13,943, respectively. 
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conrinued) 

Concentrations of Revenue Source  

The Organization's prirnary source of revenue is Medicaid (Title XIX) revenue. For the 
fiscal years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, $6,333,382 and 55,799,380 or 63% and 58% 
of the Organization's total gross revenue was from Title XIX. If significant budget cuts 
are rnade at the federal and/or state level, the amount of funds the Organization receives 
could be reduced significantly and have an adverse impact on its operations. As of 
December 29, 2023, management was not aware of any actions taken that would 
adversely affect the amount of Federal or State thnds the Organization will receive in the 
upcoming fiscal year. 

Income Tax Status  

The Oraanization is a nonprofit organization and exempt from income taxes under 
Section 501(c)(3) of thc Internal Revenue Code and classified by the Internal Revenue 
Code as other than a private foundation. The Organization believes that it has 
appropriate support for any tax positions taken and, as such, does not have any uncertain 
tax positions that are material to combined financial statements. The Organization's 
Federal Exempt Information Returns (Form 990) for 2021, 2022 and 2023 are subject to 
examination by the IRS. generally for three years after they were filed. 

In-Kind Contributions and Contributed Services  

In-kind contrihutions are reflected as contributions at their fair value at date of donation 
and are reported as support without donor restrictions unless explicit donor stipulations 
specify how donated assets must be used. The Organization recognizes the fair value of 
contributed services received if such services a) create or enhance nonfinancial assets or 
b) require specialized skills that are provided by individuals possessing those skills and 
would typically need to be purchased if not contributed. 

The Organization receives a significant amount of contributcd time from volunteers that 
does not meet the recognition criteria described above. Accordingly, the value of this 
contributed time is not reflected in the accompanying financial statements. The 
Organization receives donated services in the form of Board of Directors and committee 
members and event volunteers. "lhe hours contributed is estimated by management to be 
3.019 hours valued at S45,285 for the year ended June 30, 2023. 

Investments  

Investments arc reported at cost, if purchased, or at fair value, if donated. Thereafter, 
investrnents are reported at their fair values in the combined Statements of Financial 
Position, and changes in fair value are reported as investment return in the statements of 
activities. The Organization holds investments in mutual funds and stocks and carries 
such investments at current quoted prices in active rnarkets (Level I measurements). 
Investment incorne is reported as increases in net assets without donor restrictions in the 
reporting period in which the income and aains are recognized. 
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Certificates of Deposit 

Certificates of deposit held for investment that are not debt securities are included in 
"investments-certificate of deposit". The certificate of deposit has a remaining maturity 
of less than one year and is classified as a current asset on the combined Staternents of 
Financial Position. 

Tenants' Securitv Deposits 

Tenants' security deposits are held in a separate bank account in the name of the 
Organization. At June 30, 2023 and 2022, the Organization had 52,033 and $1,933 in 
tenant security cleposits, respectively. 

Property and Equipment 

All acquisitions of property and equipment in excess of $5.000 and all expenditures for 
repairs, maintenance, renewals, and betterments that materially prolong the useful lives 
of assets are capitalized. Property and equipment are carried at cost or, if donated, at the 
approxirnate fair value at the date of donation. Depreciation is computed using the 
straight-line method over the useful life of the assets. State fimding sources may maintain 
an equitable interest in the property purchased with grant monics as well as the right to 
determine the use of any proceeds frotn the sale of these assets. 

Endowrnent Fund 

An investment was established where the principal is retained in perpetuity and catTied as 
net assets with donor restrictions. income generated from the invested amount is used to 
fulfill the donor's intent, allow for associated fees. and continuc the growth of the 
endowment in order to rnaintain its value over time. The Organization has a St3.526 
donor restricted endowment invested in government securities and uses the income front 
these investrnents for general operating purposes. 

Revenue Recognition 

Contributions received are recorded as net assets without donor restrictions or net assets 
with donor restrictions, depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor-imposed 
restrictions. Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as an increase in 
net assets without donor restrictions if the restriction expires in the reporting period in 
which the contribution is recognized. All other donor restricted contributions are 
reported as an increase in net assets with donor restrictions, depending on thc namre of 
restriction. When a restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or 
purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to 
net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statements of activities as net 
assets released front restrictions. 
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Revenue Recognition (continued) 

Contributed property and equipment are recorded at fair value at the date of donation. 
Contributions with donor-imposed stipulations regarding how long the contributed 
assets must be used are recorded as net assets with donor restrictions; otherwise, the 
contributions are recorded as net assets without donor restrictions. 

Revenue is recognized for senices provided to our clients. Revenue for these services is 
measured based on the amount charged for the service. Revenue is recognized and 
considered earned at the time of completion of the services. 

Paycheck Protection Plan loan amount is recorded as revenue whcn it is ultimately 
forgiven (i.e., the entity is legally released from being the loan's primary obligor in 
accordance with ASC 405-20, Extinguishment of Debt) then income would be recognized 
in the combined Statement of Activities as a gain from PPP loan extinguishment. 

Rental hiconie and Deferred Rent 

Rental income is recognized as rentals become due. Rental payments received in 
advance are deferred until earned. All leases between the Oroanization and the tenants 
of the property are operating leases. 

Tcnant rent charges for the current rnonth are due on the first of the month. Tenants 
who are evicted or move out are charged with damages or cleaning fees, if applicable. 

Leases 

Effective July 1, 2022, the Standard adopted FASB 842 Leases (the Standard). The 
Standard establishes a right-of-use (ROU) model that requires a lessee to record an 
ROU asset and a lease liability on the Statement of Financial Position for all leases 
with terms longer than twelve months. Leases are classified as either finance or 
operating, with classification affecting the pattern of expense recognition in the 
Statement of Activities. 

As permitted by the standard, the Organization elected. for all asset classes, the short-
term lease exemption. A short-term lease is a lease that, at the conunencement date, has a 
term of twelve nionths or less and does not include an option to purchase the underlying 
asset. 

As of June 30, 2023, thc Organization has identified no significant long-term leases and, 
as such. has recorded no ROL.  assets nor lease liabilities on the Staternent of Financial 
Position 
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NOTE 1. SUNINIARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Implernentation of New Accounting Standard  

The FASB issued Accounting Standards Update Number, 2014-09, Revenue fi-om 
Contracts with Customers (Topic 60ó), to update its revenue recognition standard to 
clarify the principles of recognizing revenues and eliminate industry-specific guidance 
as well as help financial staternent users better understand the nature, amount, timing, 
and unccrtainty of revenue that is recognized. The standard was adopted with no 
impact to the financial statements. 

The FASB issued Accounting Standards Update Number 2016-02 affecting ASC 842, 
Leaves, which provides guidance for any organization that enters a lease (as defined in 
this Update). with some specified scope exemptions. The guidance in this Update 
supersedes ASC 840 Leases. The primary objective of this update is to increase 
transparency and comparability among organizations by recognizing lease assets and 
lease liabilities in the statement of financial position and disclosing key inforrnation 
ahout leasing anangements. The standard was adopted with no impact to the financial 
statements. 

NOTE 2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

The Organization maintains several hank accounts at various banks. Accounts at each 
institution are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) for amounts 
up to $250,000. Cash exceeded FDIC limits at June 30, 2023 and 2022 by $2,318,065 
and $1,597,957, respectively. It is the opinion of management that the solvency of the 
referenced financial institution is not of particular concern at this time. 

NOTE 3. CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT 

The certificates of deposit balance at June 30, 2023 and 2022 consist of the following: 

Certificates of deposit held by institutions: 7073 7097 

Yields 2.01% per annum, due March 31, 2024 $ 85,290 $ 
Yields L70% per annum, due March 31, 2023 - 83,859 

Total certificates of deposit $ 85290 $ 83,859 

NOTE 4. INVESTMENTS 

For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, the Organization had investments as follows: 

Mutual Funds 

Stock 
Total investments 

2023  

$ 1.611.807 

20-r) 

$ 1,613.932 

1.576 
S 1,615,508 $ 1,611,807 
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NOTE 4. INVESTNIENTS (Continued) 

Recap of Investments: 
2(23 2, 02") 

Investments-current $ 1,598,281 $ 1,601.982 
Investments-restricted 13,526 13,526 

 

$ L611,807 $ 1 ,615508 

A summary of return on investments consists of the following: 

 

)093 2022 
Mutual Funds 

  

Unrealized gain (loss) (14.122) S (127,931) 
Interest and dividends L279 1,017 
Total return on invesnnent (12,893) S (126,914) 

Interest income from all sourccs totalcd $1,229 and $1,017 for the years ended June 30, 
2023 and 2022, respectively. 

NOTE 5. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America establish a 
framework for rneasuring fair value. That framework provides a fair value hierarchy 
that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The 
hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for 
identical assets or liabilities (lcvel 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to 
unobservable inputs (]evel 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value 
hierarchy under Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards 
Codification (ASC) 820 are described as follows: 

Level 1: Inputs to the valuation methodolo2y are unadjusted quoted prices in 
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Organization can access 
at the measurement date. 

Level 2: Inputs other than the quoted prices included within Level 1 that are 
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, such as: 

• Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets; 
• Quoted prices for identical or sirnilar assets or liabilities in inactive 

markets; 
• Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or 

liability; and 
• Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable 

market data by correlation or other means. 

If the asset or liability has a specitied (contractual) term, the Level 2 input must 
be observable for substantially the full term of the asset or liabilitv. 
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NOTE 5. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 

Level 3: Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant 
to the fair value measurement. 

The Organization uses appropriate valuation techniques based on the available inputs 
to measure the fair value of its investments. The asset's fair value measurement level 
with the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input that is significant 
to the fair value measurement. When available, valuation techniques maximize the use 
of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. 

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets rneasured 
at fair value. There have been no changes in the methodologies used at June 30, 2023 
and 7  077: 

Mutual Funds: Valued at the daily closing price as reported by the fund. Mutual 
funds held by the organization are open-end mutual hands that are registered with 
the U.S. Security Exchange Commission (SEC). These funds are required to 
publish their daily net asset value (NAV) and to transact at that price. The mutual 
funds held by the Organization are deemed to be actively traded. 

Common Swcks: Valued at the closing price as reported on the active market on 
which the individual securities are traded. 

The Organization recognizes transfers of assets imo and out of levels as of the date an 
event or change in circumstances causes the transfer. There were no transfers between 
levels in the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022. 

The following tables set forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, of the 
Organization's investment assets at fair value for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 
2022: 

Based On 

Quoted Prices 

ln Active 

Markets 

(Level 1) 

Other 

Obscrvable 

Inputs 

(Level 2) 

Unobservable 

Inputs 

(Level 3) 

Recurring fair value measurements 

at June 30, 2023: 

Mutual Funds: 

Franklin LIS Government Securities A 

Franklin Adj US Government Securities A 

IPM Mortoane-Backed Secs A 

Total 

Total Assets 

Measured At 

Fair Value 

$ 1,275,749 

12,390 

323,668  

S 1,611,807  

$ 1,275,749 $ 

12,390 

323,668  

$ 1,611,807 $  
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NOTE 5. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 

Based On 

Recurring fair value measurements 
at June 30, 2072: 
Mutual Funds: 

Franklin Adj US Government Securities A 
Franklin US Government Securities A 

JPM Mortgage-Backed Secs A 
Stock: 

First Guaranty Bancshares, Inc. 
Total 

Other 
Obsenable 

Inputs 
(Level 2) 

$ 1,274,902 S 
12,479 

326111 

Unobservable 
lnputs 

(Level 3) 

Quoted Prices 
ln Active 
Markets 
(Level 1) 

Total Assets 
Measurcd At 

Fair Value 

1,274,902 
12,479 

326,551 

L576 1,576 

$ 1,615,508 S 1,615,508  

NOTE 6. UNCONDITIONAL PROMISES TO GIVE 

At June 30, 2023 and 2022, the Organization received unconditional promises to give. 
Promises to give that will be received in rnore than one vcar are discounted at 5%. 

The arnounts due consist of the following: 

Contribution sources 
Annual fimdraising campaign 

Total promises to give 

Receivable in one ycar or less 
Receivable in one to five years 
Receivable in more than five years 

Total unconditional promises to give 
Less discounts to net present value 
Less allowance for uncollectible promises to give 

Net unconditional promiscs to give  

2023  
$ 120,000 

1,185,662 
$ L305,662 

2023  
$ 526.638 

763,882 
15,142  

1,305,662 
(132,270) 

(58,620) 
$ 1,114,772  

2077  

$ 120,000 
1,189.238 

$ 1.309,238 

2022  
$ 456,480 

834,758 
18,000  

1,309,238 
(230.630) 

(53.930) 
$ 1.024,678 

Recap of cun-ent portion and long-tenn portion of unconditional promises to give: 
2023 2022  

Unconditional promises to give current portion $ i26,638 $ 456.480 
Unconditional prornises to give long-term portion 588,134 568.198 

Total unconditional promises to give $ 1,114,772 $ 1,024,678 
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OPTIONS, INC. AND AFFILIATES 
COMBINED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022 

NOTE 7. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

Property and equipment at June 30, 2023 and 2022 consistcd of the following: 

 

7073 2022 useful life 

Land & improvements $ 592,340 $ 592,340 

 

Construction in Progress 153,840 23,162 

 

Buildings & improvements 3,750,817 3,670,565 10 to 32 years 
Furniture & fixtures 280,478 271,076 5 to 7 years 
Software 27,789 27,789 5 years 
Vehicles 1,029,631 952,925 5 years 

 

$ 5,834,895 $ 5.537,857 

 

Less: Accumulated depreciation (3,024,179) (2,773,423) 

  

S 2:810,716 $ 2.764.434 

 

Depreciation expenses totaled $261,209 and $252,474 for the years ended June 30, 2023 
and 2022. respectively. 

NOTE 8. TRUST ACCOUNT 

Options, Tnc. has implemented a special needs trust to hold funds tbr individuals with 
developmental special needs. All the funds hcld in the trust are for clients of the 
Organization. The trust balance was $116,286 and S103,328, at June 30, 2023 and 2022. 

NOTE 9. LEASES 

Options, Inc. has several storage and equipment leases under short-term arrangements 
with month-to-month payments that are cancelable with one month's notice by either 
party. For the years ending June 30, 2023 and 2022, the total rent expense was $24.53 1 
and $22,788, respectively. 

NOTE 10. ACCRUED LEAVE 

Options, Inc.'s ernployees can earn paid vacation after successful cornpletion of ninety 
days initial period of employment. Vacation and leave accrue at various rates depending 
upon length of service and hours worked per month, as follows: 

Emplovee Classification 
40 hour ernployees 

35-39 hour employees 

Accrual Ratc  
4.00 to 9.2 hours per month up to a 
maximum of 120 hours 
3.5 to 8.06 hours per month up to a 
maximum of 120 hours 

Accrued leave recorded at June 30, 2023 and 2022 was $102,618 and S106,876, 
respectively. 
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OPTIONS, INC. AND AFFILIATES 
COMBINED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022 

NOTE 11. CAFETERIA PLAN 

The Organization has a "Section 125" employee benefits plan, which is also referred to 
as a "Cafeteria" plan. Employer contributions into this plan are hased on length of 
service. A new employee becomes eligible to participate in the plan after 60 days. 
Employees are able to use the employer contribution for voluntary benefits and health 
ns uran cc. 

NOTE 12. LINE OF CREDIT 

The Organization has a $250,000 line of credit bearing interest at 5.85% on any 
outstanding balances at June 30, 2023, and is secured by all present and future deposit 
accounts the Oraanization has with the lender. As of June 30, 2023 and 2022. S250,000 
is available. There was no interest expense for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022. 

NOTE 13. LIQUIDITY 

The following retlects the Organization's fmancial assets available within one year of the 
combined statements of financial position as of June 30, 2023 and 2022 for general 
expenditures: 

Financial assets at year-end: 2023 2022 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,615,943 $ 1,873.689 
Accounts receivable 504,087 430,486 
Investments 1,598,281 1,601,982 
Unconditional promises to givc, currcnt portion 526,638 456.480 

Financial assets available to rneet cash needs for general 
cxpenditure within one year $ 5.244,949 $ 4,362,637 

The Organization is substantially supported by grants, governmental contracts and 
contributions. Because a donor's restriction requires resourccs to be used in a particular 
manner or in a future period, the Organization must rnaintain sufficient resources to meet 
those responsibilities to its donors. As part of the Organization's liquidity rnanagement, it 
has a policy to structure its financial assets to be available as its gcncral expenditures, 
liabilities, and other obligations come due. As described in Note 12, the Organization 
also maintains a line of credit to draw upon in an unanticipated liquidity need. 
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OPTIONS, INC. AND AFFILIATES 
COMBINED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

TUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022 

NOTE 14. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS 

At June 30, 2023 and 2022, Options, Inc. had S1,128,298 and $1,161,704 respectively, in 
net assets with donor restrictions and are available for the following purposes or periods: 

 

7093 2022 

Endowment Fund $ 13,526 $ 13,526 

Vocational program support 120.000 120,000 

Restricted gift- generator 

 

103,500 

Restricted gift- meditation garden 

 

20.000 

Pledges for subsequent years 994,772 904.678 
Total net assets with donor restrictions S 1,128,298 $ 1,161,704 

The endowment fund is donor resmicted and only the interest and gains from the 
investment may be used for operations of Options, Inc. 

NOTE 15. PENSION PLAN 

Employees of the Organization rnay participate in a 403(b) savings plan, ),Yhereby the 
ernployees may elect to make contributions pursuant to a salary reduction agreement 
upon meeting age and length-ot-senice requirements. Employees may elect to defer a 
portion of their aimual salary subject to Internal Revenue Service lirnits. The 
Organization matched up to 2% of the employees' annual salary. Employer contributions 
for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 was S16,494 and S17,455 respectively. 

NOTE 16. COMPENSATION 

lhe Board of Directors serves Options. Inc. and Affiliates without compensation. 

NOTE 17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

At June 30, 2023 and 2022, one of the Organizatiods board metnbers donated $11,738 
and $10,237 in personal stock to be used for operating expenses. Board members 
pledged $70,600 and S7,300 at the annual fundraiser to be collected over the next tive 
years for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. 

NOTE 18. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through December 29, 2023, the date 
which the financial statements were available for use. Management's evaluation revealed 
no subsequent events that require adjustment to or disclosurc in the fmancial statements. 
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 



OPTIONS, INC. AND AFFILIATES 

SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION, BENEFITS AND OTHER 
PAYMENTS TO THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

Agency Head Name: Carrie Mercke. Chief Executive Officer 

Purpose: Amount 

Salary 91.040 
Benefits-insurance 4.429 
F3enefits-retirement 1,821 

Total 97.290 
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OPTIONS. INC. AND AFFILIATES 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2023 

ASSETS 

CURREN l' ASSETS 

Options, Inc. 

Cest I re:. 
Ron!. Inc 

Foundation to 
Lnitire the Future 

Ipt ions, l Subtotal 

 

Eliminations Combined 

      

Cash and cash equivalents b 1.544,03u b 13,5w $ 53.338 $ 2.615,943 $ $ 2.615.943 
Restricted cash 

 

0.574 116.286 185.860 

 

155.560 
Accounts receivable 

      

Government contracts 481.823 

  

481.823 

 

451.523 
Oilier 22.264 - 

 

22.264 

 

22.264 
Unconditional pronlises to givc 526.1138 - 

 

526.638 

 

526.638 

Inventory 4.173 

  

4.173 

 

4.173 
Investments 1.596.281 

  

1.598.28i 

 

1.598.281 
Invesments-ccrtifimes of deposit 83.559 

  

53.859 

 

83.859 
l'repa id expenses 19.638 

  

19.638 

 

19.64,s 

l otal current assets S 5.255,715 5 83,140 5 169.624 5 5.538,47,0 5 - I. 5.5 3S.-179 

LANL). PROPER Y AND EQUIPMEN $ 5.035.723 $ 799. I 72 $ $ 5.534.895 $ 5.834.895 
Less accumulated depayciation and amortization (2.801,042 (223,1371 

 

(3.024, I 79) 

 

(3.024. I 79( 
otal land, pix,perty and equipment $ 2.234.oli 5 76.n35 s 2.810.716 

  

DEFIER ASSETS 

      

Unconditional promises to give. 
lcss allowance for doubtful accounts 5 555,134 

 

5 5 585.134 5 558.134 
Investments-restricted I .;,52o 

  

13.526 

 

13.526 

"I ota l c,ther assets 5 60 l aim) 

 

5 N.11.660 5 5 iiol .660 

Total asset> S s. i ".( ,56 S 65,4175 5 169.6:1 t 5.950.555 

 

$ 8,950.555 



ONIONS, INC. AND AFFILIATES 

COMBINING S [KLEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2023 

(CONTINUED) 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURREN I .  LIABILMES 

Options, Inc.. 

Cest 'Fres 

Bon!. lilt:. 

Foundation to 

Ensure the Future 

of Options, inc. Subtotal 

 

tliminaliunti Climhined 

      

Accounts payable $ 94.715 $ 1,710 $ - S 96,425 $ $ 96.415 
Trust held for others - - l I 4.713 114,723 

 

114.723 
Other payables 5.035 - - 5,055 

 

5.055 
Accrued salaries. leave and paymll lines 383.170 - - 383,170 

 

383.170 
Total nirrent liabilities $ 482.940 $ 1,710 ¶ 114.723 S 599,373 $ S 599.373 

LONG TERM LIABILITIES 

      

Thnants' security deposits 

 

2,032 

 

2,032 

 

2,032 
Total long term liabilities - 2,032 $. S 2.032 $ S 2,032 

Total liabilities 482.910 $ 3,742 $ l 14.723 $ 601.405 $ S 601,405 

Wid- nt( donor restrictions 

      

Undcsignatcd $ 6,509,818 $ 655,433 $ 54.901 ¶ 7,220,152 $ S 7,220,152 

Designated 

 

- 

 

- 

  

With donor restrictions 1, I 29,298 - 

 

1,129,298 

 

1,129,298 

Total uet assets $ 7,639,116 $ 655.433 S 54.901 $ 8,349,450 $ - S 8,349,450 

Total liabilities and net assets $ 8,122,056 $ 659,175 S 169,624 $ 8,950,855 $ ¶ 8,950,855 



OPTIONS, INC, AND AFFILIATES 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

REVEN(IES, (lAINS ANI ) illHER SUPPORT 

 

Options, Inc. 

Ccst fres 

Honl, Inc 

 

Foundation to 

Ensure the Future 

( )ptions, Inc Sukohil Ell111111:10011ti Combined 

       

Medicaid 

 

$ 6,333.382 $ - $ - $ 6,333,382 S - $ 6,333,387 

Grants and contracts: 

        

Federal 

 

306,937 25,419 

  

332,356 

 

332,356 

State 

 

479,449 

   

479,449 

 

479;119 

Contributions 

 

311,395 

  

20,000 331,395 

 

331,395 

Fund-raising income 

 

678,915 

   

678,915 

 

678.915 

Private pay client revenue 

 

72,003 

   

72,003 

 

72.003 

Vocational iehabilitation 

 

8,250 

   

8,250 

 

8.250 

Vocational contracts $ 640,702 

       

Less. Cosl of se/vices (319.1221 

       

Vocational contracts gross profit 

 

321.580 - 

  

321,580 

 

321,580 

Rental revenue 

 

- 18,161 

  

18.161 

 

18,161 

Investment income 

 

O4.1221 7 

 

1.222 (12.8931 

 

O2,8931 

Management and maintenance fee 

 

6.760 - 

  

6.760 

 

6,760 

Gain on sale of assets 

 

O4,6541 - 

  

(14.6541 

 

O4,6541 

Other income 

 

21.406 3,076 

  

24.482 

 

24,482 

Gain fmm PPP loan ex linguishmen1 

 

1,078,065 

   

1,078.065 

 

1,078,065 

Total revenues, gains, und oilier support 

 

$ 9,589,366 $ 46,663 S 21,222 $ 9,657.251 $ .$ 9,657,251 

EXPENSES 

        

Program Services 

        

Residential services 

 

$ 2,284,632 $ - s 

 

$ 2,284,632 $ - $ 2,284,632 

Vocational seiwices 

 

2,165,338 

   

2,16,5.338 

 

2,165,338 

Individualized services 

 

3.6;18,983 

   

3,648,983 

 

3,648,983 

Housing scrviccs 

 

- 56,(,77 

  

56.677 

 

56,677 

Support Services 

        

Management and general 

 

335,165 

   

335,165 

 

335,165 

Fund-wising 

 

170,763 

   

170,763 

 

170.763 

Total expenses 

 

S 8,604,881 S 56,677 $ - S 8,601,558 $ - S 8.661.55g 

Diann in rid assels 

 

5 984.485 S (10.014) $ 21,222 S 995.693 $ - $ 995.693 

Net assels at beginning of year 

 

6.654,631 665.447 

 

33,679 7,353.757 

 

7,353,757 

Net assets at end of year 

 

$ 7,639,116 $ 655,433 $ 54,9111 $ 8,349,450 5 - $ 8,349,4511 



SPECIAL REPORTS OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS 



   JOSEPH V. FRANKS II, C.P.A. 

BERNARD & FRANKS 
A CORPORATION OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS JAMES L. WHITE, C.P.A. 

EPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS  

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED  
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Board of Directors 
Options, Inc. and Affiliates 
Hammond, Louisiana 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of 
Options, Inc. and Affiliates, which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2023 
and the related statements of activities, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes 
to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 29, 2023. 

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the fmancial statements, we considered the Organization's 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Organization's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Organization's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the noimal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent 
or detect and correct misstatements, on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the Organization's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected 
and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to 
merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit, we did not identify 
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. 

MEMBERS: AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNT:MITS; SOCIETY OF LOUISIANA CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Organization's financial statements arc 
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws. regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct 
and rnaterial effect on the financial statcments. However, providiruz an opinion on compliancc with 
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordindy, we do not express such an 
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instanccs of noncompliance or other matters that are 
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
cornpliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Or2anization's internal control or cornpliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization's intemal control 
and compliance. Accordinzly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

This report is intended for the infounation of the Board of Directors, mana2ernent, the State of 
Louisiana, the Legislative Auditor for the State of Louisiana_ Federal Awarding, Aaencies, and pass-
throuth entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these 
specified parties_ Under Louisiana Revised Statue 24:513, this report is distributed by the 
Legislative Auditor as a public document. 

&_uvimvic S J emk 

Metairie, Louisiana 
December 29, 2023 
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JOSEPH V. FRANKS II, C.P.A. 

BERNARD & FRANKS 
A CORPORATION OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS JAMES L. WHITE, C.P.A. 

NDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR 
OGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY 

THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

To the Board of Directors 
Options, Inc. and Affiliates 
Hammond, Louisiana 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited the compliance of Options, Inc. and its Affiliates with the types of compliance 
requircments identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a 
direct and material effect on each of the Organization's major federal programs for the year ended 
June 30, 2023. The Organization's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's 
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

In our opinion, the Organization complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major 
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2023. 

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit 
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). 
Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the 
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report. 

We are required to be independent of the Organization and to meet our other ethical responsibilities 
in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on 
compliance for each maj or federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the 
Organization's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above. 

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the 
requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grants agreements 
applicable to the Organization's federal programs. 

MEMBERS: AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS; SOCIETY OF LOUISIANA CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
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Auditors' Responsibilities for tlie Audit of Compliance 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error and express an 
opinion on the Organization's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and 
Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not 
detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than that resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion. forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations. or the ovenide of 
internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered 
material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the agareaate, it would influence 
the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the Organization's 
compliance with the requirements of cach major federal program as a whole. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Governrnent 
Auditing Standards, and Uniform Guidance, we: 

• Exercise professional judament and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the Organization's cornpliance with the 
compliance requirements refen-ed to above and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances. 

• Obtain an understanding of the Organizatiods internal control over compliance relevant to 
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to 
test and report on internal control over cornpliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidancc. 
but not for thc purpose of expressing an opinion on the cffectiveness of the Organization's 
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

We are required to conmiunicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and tiniing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material 
weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit. 

Report on Internal Control ovcr Compliance 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control 
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their 
assigned fimctions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, 
such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and erected, on a timely basis. 
A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of cornpliance requirement of a federal 
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
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Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in thc 

Auditors-  Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to 
identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit. 
we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider material 
weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance rnay exist that were not identified. 

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal 
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements 
of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over cornpliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of intemal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements 
of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. Under 
Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513. this report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public 
document. 

Metairie, Louisiana 
December 29. 2023 
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OPTIONS, INC. 
(A NONPROFIT ORGANIZATION) 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

Federal grantor/pass-through grantoriprogram 

Assistance 

number Contract number 

Total 
federal 

expenditures 

United States Department of Health aud Human Services/ 
Health Resources & Services Administration 

COV1D-19 Healthcare Relief Proararn CARES Act 
Total Unitcd Statcs Department of Health and Human Scrviccs 

93.498 

 

611.868 
611.868 

Department of Transportation and Development/ 
Federal Transit Administration 

   

Job Access and Reverse Commute Proaram 20.516 LA-37-X032 $ 120.000 
Job Access and Reverse Commute Program 70.5 l 6 LA-37-X026 80,000 
Joh Access and Reverse Commute Program 20.516 LA-37-X037 39,973 
Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilitics 20.513 ED 16-53-22 66,964 

Total Department of 1 ransportation and Development 

  

16 306,937 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS S 918,805 

5 



OPTIONS, INC. AND AFFILIATES 
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

NOTF I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

General  

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule) includes the 
federal award activity of Options, Inc. and Affiliates under programs of the federal 
governrnent for the year ending June 30, 2023. The information in this Schedule is presented 
in accordance with the requirernents of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, 
Umform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements fbr Federal 
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the 
operations of Options, Inc. and Affiliates, it is not intended to and docs not present the 
tinancial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of Options, Inc. and Affiliates. 

Financial Statement Presentation  

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such 
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance 
and OMB Circular A-I 22, Cost Principles for 'Von-profit Organizations, wherein certain 
expenditures are not allowable or are limited to reimbursement. 

Indirect Cost Rate  

The Organization did not elect to take the de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the 
Uniform Guidance. 
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OPTIONS, INC. AND AFFILIATES 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

Section I- Summary Of Auditors' Results 

Financial Statements 

l. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of Options, 
Inc. and Affiliates, which was prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States. 

2 No significant deficiencies or material weaknesses of Options, Inc. and Affiliates in internal 
control were disclosed by the audit of the financial statements as reported in the Independent 
Auditors' Repon on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other 
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Prepared in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards. 

3. No instances of noncompliance rnaterial to the financial statements of Options, lnc. and 
Affiliates were disclosed in the Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control over 
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial 
Statements Prepared in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards.. 

Federal Awards 

4. No significant deficiencies or rnaterial weaknesses relating to internal control over the major 
federal award programs were disclosed during the audit, as reported in the Independent 
Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on Internal Control over 
Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. 

5 The auditors' repon on cornpliance for major federal award programs cxpresses an 
unmodified opinion. 

6. There were no audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with the Uniform 
Guidance. 

7. The major program tested were the following: 

Assistance 
listing number Natne of Federal Program or Cluster 

93.498 COVID-19 Healthcare Relief Program CARES Act 
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OPTIONS, INC. AND AFFILIATES 
SCIIL'DULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

(Continued) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

Section I- Summary of Auditors' Results 

Federal Awards-Continued 

8. The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B programs was $750,000. 

9. Options, Inc. and Affiliates was not determined to he a low-risk auditee as defined by 
Uniform Guidance. 

Section II- Financial Statement Findings 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting And Compliance And Other NIatters Material 
To Thc Basic Financial Statements 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

No internal control over financial reporting findings was reported during the audit for the 
year ending June 30, 2023. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

No compliance findings material to the financial statements were reported during the audit 
for the year ending June 30, 2023. 

Section III - Federal Award Findings And Questioned Costs 

Internal ControllCompliance 

No fuidings or questioned costs were reported during the audit of the fmancia] statements for 
the ycar ended June 30, 2023, related to internal control and compliance material to federal 
awards. 
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REPORTS BY MANAGEMENT 



OPTIONS, INC. AND AFFILIATES 
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

Scction I - Internal Control Ovcr Financial Reporting and Compliance and Other Matters 
Material to the Basic Financial Statements 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

No findings were noted during the year end June 30, 2022 audit related to internal control 
over financial reporting material to the basic financial statements. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

There was no findings material to the financial statements noted during the year end June 30, 
2022 audit related to compliance and other matters. 

Section II - Internal Control and Compliance Material to Federal Awards 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

This is not applicable to the Organization for the vear ended June 30, 2022. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

This is not applicable to the Organization for the year ended June 30. 2022. 

Section III - Management Letter 

A management letter was not issued in connection with the audit of the financial statements 
for the vear endimz June 30, 2022. 
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STATEWIDE AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 



  
JOSEPH V. FRANKS II, C.P.A.  

BERNARD & FRANKS 
A CORPORATION OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS JAMES L. WHITE, C.P.A. 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT 
ON APPLYING STATEWIDE AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

To the Board of Directors of 
Options, Inc. and Affiliates 
Hammond, Louisiana 
and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor: 

We have performed the procedures enumerated below on the control and compliance (C/C) areas 
identified in the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's (LLA's) Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures 
(SAUPs) for the fiscal period .Tuly 1, 2022 through. June 30, 2023. Options, Inc. and Affiliates' 
management is responsible for those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. 

Options, Inc. and Affiliates (a nonprofit "Organization") has agreed to and acknowledged that the 
procedures performed are appropriate to meet the intended purpose of the engagement, which is 
to perform. specified procedures on the C/C areas identified in LLA's SAUPs for the fiscal period 
July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023. Additionally, LLA has agreed to and acknowledged that the 
procedures performed are appropriate for its purposes. This report may not be suitable for any 
other purpose. The procedures performed may not address all the items of interest to a user of this 
report and may not meet the needs of all users of this report and, as such, users are responsible for 
determining whether the procedures performed are appropriate for their purposes. 

The procedures and associated findings are as follows: 

1.) Written Policies and Procedures 

A. Obtain and inspect the Organization's written policies and procedures and observe whether 
they address each of the following categories and subcategories if applicable to public funds 
and the Organization's operations: 

i. Budgeting, including preparing, adopting, monitoring, and amending the budget. 

Result: There were no exceptions noted. 

ii. Purchasing, including (1) how purchases are initiated, (2) how vendors are added to the 
vendor list, (3) the preparation and approval process of purchase requisitions and purchase 
orders, (4) controls to ensure compliance with the Public Bid Law, and (5) documentation 
required to be maintained for all bids and price quotes. 

Result: There were no exceptions noted. 

iii. Disbursements, including processing, reviewing, and approving. 

Result: There were no exceptions noted. 

iv. Receipts/Collections, including receiving, recording, and preparing deposits. Also, 
policies and procedures should include management's actions to determine the 
completeness of all collections for each type of revenue or agency fund additions (e.g., 
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periodic confirmation with outside parties, reconciliation to utility billing after cutoff 
procedures, reconciliation of traffic ticket number sequences, agency hind forfeiture 
monies confirmation). 

Result: There were no exceptions noted. 

v. Payroll/Personnel, including (1) payroll processing, (2) reviewing and approving thne and 
attendance records, including leave and overtime worked_ and (3) approval process for 
ernployee(s) rate of pay or approval and maintenance of pay rate schedules. 

Result: There were no exceptions noted. 

vi. Contracting, including (1) types of services requiring written contracts. (2) standard terms 
and conditions, (3) legal review, (4) approval process, and (5) monitoring process. 

Result: There were no exceptions noted. 

vii. Travel and Expense Reimbursement, including (1) allowable expenses, (2) dollar 
thresholds by category of expense, (3) documentation requirements. and (4) required 
approvers. 

Result: There were no exceptions noted. 

viii. Credit Cards (and debit cards, fuel cards, P-Cards, if applicable), including (1) how cards 
are to be controlled, (2) allowable business uses, (3) documentation requirements, (4) 
required approvers of statements, and (5) monitoring card usage (e.g., determining the 
reasonableness of fuel card purchases). 

Result: There were no exceptions noted. 

ix. Ethics, including (I) the prohibitions as defined in Louisiana Revised Statute (R.S.) 
42:1111-1121, (2) actions to be taken if an ethics violation takes place, (3) system to 
monitor possible ethics violations, and (4) a requirement that docurnentation is maintained 
to demonstrate that all employees and officials were notified of any changes to the 
Organization's ethics policy. 

Result: The Organization is a nonprofit organization; therefore, the ethics agreed-upon 
procedure does not apply. 

x. Debt Service, including (1) debt issuance approval, (2) continuing disclosure/EMMA 
reporting requirements. (3) debt reserve requirements, and (4) debt service requirements. 

Result: The Organization is a nonprofit organization: therefore, the debt service agreed-
upon procedure does not apply. 

xi. Information Technology Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity, including (1) 
identification of critical data and frequency of data backups. (2) storage of backups in a 
separate physical location isolated from the network. (3) periodic testing/verification that 
backups can be restored, (4) use of antivirus software on all systems, (5) timely application 
of all available system and software patches/updates, and (6) identification of persomiel, 
processes, and tools needed to recover operations after a critical event. 

Result: There were no exceptions noted. 
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xii. Prevention of Sexual Harassment. including Louisiana Revised Statute (R.S.) 42:342-344 
requirements for (1) agency responsibilities and prohibitions, (2) annual employee training, 
and (3) annual reporting. 

Result: Thc Organization does have a sexual harassrnent policy, but their policies are not 
defined under Louisiana Revised Statute (R.S.) 42:342-344, due to their nonprofit status. 
Therefore, the sexual harassrnent agree-upon procedures do not apply. 

2.) Board or Finance Committee 

A. Obtain and inspect the board/finance committee rninutes for the fiscal period, as well as the 
board's enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or equivalent docurnent in effect during the fiscal 
period, and: 

Observe that the board/fmance committee met with a quorum at least monthly, or on a 
frequency in accordance with the board's enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or other 
equivalent document_ 

Results: There were no exceptions noted. 

ii. For those entities reporting on the governmental accounting model, observe whether the 
minutes referenced or included monthly budget-to-actual cornparisons on the general fund, 
quarterly budget-to-actual, at a minimurn, on proprietary funds, and semi-annual budget-
to-actual, at a minimum, on all special revenue fiinds. Alternately, for those entities 
reporting on the nonprofit accounting model, observe that the minutes referenced or 
included financial activity relating to public jUnds if those public Iiinds cornprised more 
than 10% of the Organization's collections during theliscul period. 

Results: There were no exceptions noted. 

iii. For governmental entities, obtain the prior year audit report and observe the unassigned 
fiind balance in the general fund. lf the general fund had a negative ending unassigned 
fund balance in the prior year audit report, observe that the minutes for at least one meeting 
during the fiscal period referenced or included a fonnal plan to eliniinate the negative 
unassigned fund balance in the general fund. 

Results: The Organization is a nonprofit organization: therefore, this agreed-upon 
procedure does not apply. 

iv. Observe whether the board/finance committee received written updates of the progress of 
resolving audit finding(s), according to management's corrective action plan at each 
meeting until the findings are considered fully resolved. 

Results: This is not applicable because the Organization did not have audit findings. 

3.) Bank Reconciliations 

A. Obtain a listing of Organization bank accounts for the fiscal period from management and 
management's representation that the listing is cornplete. Ask management to identify the 
Organization's main operating account. Select the Organization's main operating account and 
randomly select 4 additional accounts (or all accounts if less than 5). Randomly select onc 
month front the fiscal period, obtain and inspect the corresponding bank statement and 
reconciliation for each selected account, and observe that: 
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Result: We obtained the required list with rnanagcment's representation that the listing is 
complete. 

i. Bank reconciliations include evidence that they were prepared within 2 months of the 
related statement closing date (e.g., initialed and dated or electronically logged); 

Result: There were no exceptions noted. 

Bank reconciliations include evidence that a member of management/board member who 
does not handle cash, post ledgers, or issue checks has reviewed each bank reconciliation 
(e.g., initialed and dated, electronically logged); and 

Result: There were no exceptions noted. 

Management has documentation reflecting it has researched reconciling items that have 
been outstanding for more than 12 months from the statement closing date, if applicable. 

Result: There werc no exceptions noted. 

4.) Collections (excluding electronic funds transfers)  

A. Obtain a listing of deposit sites for the fiscal period where deposits for cash/checks/money 
orders (cash) are prepared and management's representation that the listing is compiete. 
Randomly select 5 deposit sites (or all deposit sites if less than 5). 

Result: We obtained the required list with management's representation that the listing is 
complete. 

B. For each deposit site selected, obtain a listing of collection locations and management's 
representation that the listing is cornplete. Randomly select one collection location for each 
deposit site (i.e., 5 collection locations for 5 deposit sites), obtain and inspect written policies 
and procedures relating to ernployee job duties (if no written policies or procedures. inquire of 
employees about their job duties) at each collection location, and observe that job duties are 
properly segregated at each collection location such that: 

Result: We obtained the required list with management's representation that the listing is 
complete. 

i. Employees responsible for cash collections do not share cash drawers/registers. 

Result: There were no exceptions noted. 

ii. Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for preparing/making 
bank deposits, unless another employee/official is responsible for reconciling collection 
documentation (e.g., pre-numbered receipts) to the deposit. 

Result: There were no exceptions noted. 

iii. Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for posting collection 
entries to the general ledger or subsidiary ledgers unless another employee/official is 
responsible for reconciling ledger postings to each other and to the deposit. 

Result: There were no exceptions noted. 
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iv. The employee(s) responsible lbr reconcilimg cash collections to the general ledger and/or 
subsidiary ledgers, by revenue source and/or agency fund additions, are not responsible for 
collecting cash, unless another employee/official verifies the reconciliation 

Result: There were no exceptions noted. 

C. Obtain from management a copy of the bond or insurance policy for theft covering all 
ernployees who have access to cash. Observe the bond or insurance policy for theft was 
enforced during the fiscal period. 

Result: There were no exceptions noted. 

D. Randomly select two deposit dates for each of the 5 bank accounts selected for procedure #3 
under "Bank Reconciliations." above (select the next deposit date chronologically if no deposits 
were made on the dates randomly selected and randomly select a deposit if multiple deposits 
are rnade on the same day). Obtain supporting documentation for each of the 10 deposits and: 

i. Observe that receipts are sequentially pre-numbered. 

Result: There were no exceptions noted. 

ii. Trace sequentially pre-numbered receipts, system reports, and other related collection 
documentation to the deposit slip. 

Result: There were no exceptions noted. 

iii. Trace the deposit slip total to the actual deposit per the banlc statement. 

Result: There were no exceptions noted. 

iv. Observe the deposit was made within one business day of receipt at the collection location 
(within one week if the depository is more than 10 miles from the collection location or the 
deposit is less than $100 and the cash is stored securely in a locked safe or drawer). 

Result: There were no exceptions noted. 

v. Trace the actual deposit per the bank statement to the general ledger. 

Result: There were no exceptions noted. 

5.) Non-Payroll Disbursements (excluding card purchases/payments, travel reimbursements, 
and petty cash purchases) 

A. Obtain a listing of locations that process payments for the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 locations (or all locations if less 
than 5). 

Result: We obtained the required list with management's representation that the listing is 
complete. 

B. For each location selected under #5A above, obtain a listing of those employees involved with 
non-payroll purchasing and payment functions. Obtain written policies and procedures 
relating to ernployee job duties (if the agency has no written policies and procedures, inquire 
of employees about their job duties), and observe that job duties are properly segregated such 
that: 
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Result: We obtained the required list with management's representation that thc listing is 
complete. 

i. At least two employees are involved in initiating a purchase request, approving a purchase, 
and placing an order/making the purchase. 

Result: There were no exceptions noted. 

ii. At least two employees are involved in processing and approving payments to vendors. 

Result: There were no exceptions noted. 

iii. The employee responsible for processing payments is prohibited from adding/modifying 
vendor files, unless another employee is responsible for periodically reviewing changes to 
vendor files. 

Result: There were no exceptions noted. 

iv. Either the employee/official responsible for signing checks mails the payment or gives the 
signed checks to an employee to mail who is not responsible for processing payments. 

Result: There were no exceptions noted. 

v. Only employees/officials authorized to sign checks approve the electronic disbursement 
(release) of funds, whether through automated clearinghouse (ACH), electronic funds 
transfer (EFT), wire transfer, or some other electronic means_ 

Result: There were no exceptions noted. 

C. For each location selected under #5A above, obtain the Organization's non-payroll 
disbursement transaction population (excluding cards and travel reimbursements) and ohtain 
management's representation that the population is complete. Randornly select 5 
disbursements for each location, obtain supporting documentation for each transaction, and: 

i. Observe whether the disbursernent, whether by paper or electronic means, matched the 
related original itemized invoice and supporting documentation indicates deliverables 
included on the invoice were received by the Organization. 

Result: There were no exceptions noted. 

ii. Observe whether the disbursement documentation included evidence (e.g., initial/date, 
electronic logging) of segregation of duties tested under #9, as applicable. 

Result: There were no exceptions noted. 

D. Using the entity's main operation account and the month selected in Bank Reconciliations 
procedure 43A, randomly select 5 non-payroll-related electronic disbursements (or all 
electronic disbursements if less than 5) and observe that each electronic disbursement was (a) 
approved by only those persons authorized to disburse funds (e.g., sign checks) per the entity's 
policy, and (b) approved by the required number of authorized signers per the entity's policy. 
Note: If no electronic payments were made from the main operating account during the month 
selected the practitioner should select an altemative month and/or account for testing that does 
include electronic disbursements. 

Result: There were no exceptions noted. 
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6.) Credit Cards/Debit Cards/Fuel Cards/P-Cards 

A. Obtain from rnanagernent a listing of all active credit cards, bank debit cards. Mel cards, and 
P-cards (cards) for the fiscal period, including the card numbers and the names of the persons 
who maintained possession of the cards. Obtain management's representation that the listing 
is complete. 

Result: We obtained the required list with management's representation that the listing is 
complete. 

B. Using, the listing prepared by management, randomly select 5 cards (or all cards if less than 5) 
that were used during_ the fiscal period. Randomly select one monthly statement or combined 
statement for each card (for a debit card. randomly select one monthly bank staternent), obtain 
supporting documentation, and: 

i. Observe whether there is evidence that the monthly staternent or combined statement and 
supporting documentation (e.., original receipts for credifidebit card purchases, exception 
reports for excessive fiiel card usage) were reviewed and approved, in whting (or 
electronically approved), by sorneone other than the authorized card holder. 

Result: There were no exceptions noted. 

ii Observe that finance charges and late fees were not assessed on the selected statements. 

Result: There were no exceptions noted. 

C. -Wink,  the monthly statements or combined statements selected under #6B above excluding_  
fuel cards. randomly select 10 transactions (or all transactions if less than 10) from each 
statement, and obtain supporting docurnentation for the transactions (Le., each card should 
have 10 transactions subject to testing). For each transaction, observe it is supported by (1) an 
original itemized receipt that identities precisely what was purchased, (2) written 
documentation of the business/public purpose. and (3) documentation of the individuals 
participating in meals (for meal charges only). For missing receipts, the practitioner should 
describe the nature of the transaction and note whether management had a compensating 
control to address missing receipts, such as a "missing receipt statement.' that is subject to 
increased scrutiny. 

Result: There were no exceptions noted. 

7.) Travel and Travel-Related Expense Reimbursenzents (excluding card transactimzs)  

A. Obtain from management a listing of all travel and travel-related expense rehnbursernents 
during the fiscal period and management's representation that the listing or general ledger is 
complete. Randomly select 5 reimbursements, obtain the related expense reimbursement 
forms/prepaid expense documentation of each selected reimbursement. as well as the 
supporting documentation. For each of the 5 reimbursements selected: 

Result: We obtained the required list with managernent's representation that the listing is 
complete. 

i. If reimbursed using a per diem, observe the approved reimbursement rate is no more than 
those rates established either by the State of Louisiana or the U.S. General Services 
Administration (www.gsa.aov). 

- 46 - 



Rcsult: There were no exceptions noted. 

If reirnbursed using actual costs, observe the reimbursement is supported by an original 
itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased. 

Result: There were no exceptions noted. 

iii. Observe each reimbursement is supported by docurnentation of the business/public purpose 
(for meal charges, observe that the documentation includes the names of those individuals 
participating) and other documentation required by written policies and procedures 
procedure #1A(vii). 

Result: There were no exceptions noted_ 

iv. Observe each reimbursement was reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone other 
than the person receiving reimbursement. 

Result: There were no exceptions noted. 

8.) Contracts 

A. Obtain from management a listing of ali agreements/contracts for professional services, 
materials and supplies, leases, and construction activities that were initiated or renewed during 
the fiscal period. Alternately, the practitioner may use an equivalent selection source, such as 
an active vendor list. Obtain management's representation that the listing is cornplete. 
Randomly select 5 contracts (or all contracts if less than 5) frorn the listing, excluding the 
practitioner's contract, and: 

Result: \Ve obtained the required list with management's representation that the listing is 
complete. 

i. Observe whether the contract was bid in accordance with thc Louisiana Public Bid Law 
(e.g., solicited quotes or bids, advertised), if required by law. 

Result: This is not applicable, as the Organization did not have any contracts under the 
Louisiana Public Bid Law requirements. 

ii Observe whether the contract was approved by the governing body/board, if required by 
policy or law. 

Result: There were no exceptions noted. 

If the contract was amended (e.g., change order), observe the original contract terms 
provided for such an amendment and that amendments were made in compliance with the 
contract terms (e.g., if approval is required for any arnendment, was approval documented). 

Result: There were no exceptions noted. 

iv. Randomly select one payment from the fiscal period for each of the 5 contracts, obtain the 
supporting invoice, agree the invoice to the contract terms, and obsene the invoice and 
related payment agreed to the terms and conditions of the contract. 

Result: There were no exceptions noted. 
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9.) Payroll and Personnel 

A. Obtain a listing of ernployees and officials employed during the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the listing is cornplete. Randomly select 5 ernplovees or 
officials, obtain related paid salaries and personnel files, and agree paid salaries to authorized 
salaries/pay rates in the personnel files. 

Result: We obtained the required list with management's representation that the listing is 
complete. 

B. Randomly select one pay period during the fiscal period. For the 5 employees or officials 
selected under *OA above, obtain attendance records and leave docurnentation for the pay 
period, and: 

i. Observe all selected employees or officials documented their daily attendance and leave 
(e.g., vacation, sick, compensatory). (Note: Generally, officials are not eligible to eam 
leave and do not document their attendance and leave. However, if the official is earning 
leave according to a policy and/or contract, the official should document hisiher daily 
attendance and leave.) 

Result: There were no exceptions noted. 

ii. Observe whether supervisors approved the attendance and leave of the selected employees 
or officials. 

Result: There were no exceptions noted. 

Observe any ]eave accrued or taken during the pay period is reflected in the Organization's 
curnulative leave records. 

Result: Therc were no exceptions noted. 

Obsene the rate paid to the ernployees or officials agree to the authorized salary/pay rate 
found within the personnel file. 

Result: There we no exceptions noted. 

C Obtain a listing of those employees or officials that received termination payments during the 
fiscal period and management's representation that the list is complete. Randomly select two 
ernployees or officials, obtain related documentation of the hours and pay rates used in 
management's termination payment calculations and the Organization's policy on termination 
payments. Agree the hours to the employee or officials' cumulative leave records. agree the 
pay rates to the employee or officials' authorized pay rates in the employee or officials' 
personnel files, and agree the termination payment to Organization policy. 

Result: We obtained the required list with management's representation that the listing is 
complete. There were no exceptions noted. 

D. Obtain management's representation that employer and employee portions of third-party 
payroll related amounts (e.g., payroll taxes. retirement contributions, health insurance 
premiums, garnishments, workers' compensation premiums, etc.) have been paid, and any 
associated forms have been filed, by required deadlines. 
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Result: We obtained managemenCs representation that ernployer and employee portions of 
third-party payroll related amounts have been paid, and any associated forms have been 
filed, by required deadlines. There were no exceptions noted. 

10.) Ethics 

A. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from procedure 49A under "Payroll and 
Personnel" above obtain ethics documentation from management, and: 

i.	 Observe whether the documentation demonstrates each employee/official completed one 
hour of ethics training during the fiscal period. 

Observe whether the Organization maintains documentation which demonstrates each 
employee and official were notified of any changes to the Organization's ethics policy 
during the fiscal period, as applicable. 

B. Inquire and/or observe whether the agency has appointed an ethics designee as required by 
Louisiana Revised Statute (R.S.) 42:1170. 

Result: The Organization is a nonprofit organization; therefore, the ethics agreed-upon procedure 
does not apply. 

II.) Debt Senice 

A. Obtain a listing of bonds/notes and other debt instruments issued during the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the listing is cornplete. Select all debt instruments on the 
listing, obtain supporting documentation, and observe State Bond Commission approval was 
obtained for each debt instrument issued. 

B. Obtain a listing of bonds/notes outstanding at the end of the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select one bond/note, inspect debt 
covenants, obtain supporting documentation for the reserve balance and payments, and agree 
actual reserve balances and payments to those required by debt covenants (including 
contingency funds. short-lived asset funds, or other funds required by the debt covenants). 

Result: The Organization is a nonprofit organization; therefore, the debt service agreed-upon 
procedure does not apply. 

12.) Fraud Notice 

A. Obtain a listing of rnisappropriations of public finds and assets during the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Select all misappropriations on the 
listing, obtain supporting documentation, and observe that the Organization reported thc 
misappropriation(s) to the legislative auditor and the district attorney of the parish in which the 
Organization is domiciled by Louisiana Revised Statute (R.S.) 24:523. 

Result: The Organization represented that there were no misappropriations of public funds 
for the fiscal year. There were no exceptions noted. 

B. Observe the Organization has posted on its premises and website, the notice required by 
Louisiana Revised Statute (R.S.) 24:523.1 concerning the reporting of misappropriation, fraud, 
waste, or abuse of public funds. 

Result: There were no exceptions noted. 
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13.) Information Technology Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity 

A. Perform the following procedures: 

i. Obtain and inspect the Organization's rnost recent documentation that it has backed up its 
critical data (if no written documentation, inquire of personnel responsible for backing up 
critical data) and observe that such backup occurred within the past week. If backups are 
stored on a physical medium (e.g., tapes, CDs), observe evidence that backups are 
encrypted before being transported. 

Result: We perfonned the procedure and discussed the results with management. 

ii. Obtain and inspect the Organization's most recent documentation that it has tested/verified 
that its backups can be restored (if no written docurnentation, inquire of persoimel 
responsible for testing/verifying backup restoration) and observe evidence that the 
test/verification was successfully performed within the past 3 months. 

Rcsult: We performed the procedure and discussed the results with management. 

Obtain a listing of the Organizations computers currently in use and their related locations, 
and management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 
cornputers and observe while management demonstrates that the selected computers have 
current and active antivirus software and that the operating system and accounting system 
software in use are currently supported by the vendor. 

Result: We performed the procedure and discussed the results with management_ 

B. Randomly select 5 terminated employees (or all terminated employecs if less than 5) using the 
list of terminated employees obtained in procedure #9C. Observe evidence that the selected 
employees have been removed or disabled frorn the network. 

Result: We performed the procedure and discussed the results with management. 

14.) Prevention of Sexual Harassment 

A_ Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from procedure #9A under "Payroll and 
Personnel" above, obtain sexual harassrnent training documentation from management, and 
obsenT the documentation demonstrates each employee/official completed at least one hour 
of sexual harassment training during the calendar year. 

Result: The Organization is a nonprofit organization; therefore, the prevention of sexual 
harassment agreed-upon procedure does not apply. 

B. Observe the Organization has posted its sexual harassment policy and complaint procedure on 
its website (or in a conspicuous location on the Organization's premises if the Organization 
does not have a website). 

Result: The Organization is a nonprofit organization; therefore, the prevention of sexual 
harassment agreed-upon procedure does not apply. 

C. Obtain the Organization's annual sexual harassment report for the current fiscal period, 
observe that the report was dated on or before February 1. and observe it includes the applicable 
requirements of Louisiana Revised Statute (R.S.) 42:344: 
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i. Number and percentage of public servants in the agency who have completed the training 
requirements; 

ii. Number of sexual harassment complaints received by the agency; 

iii. Number of complaints which resulted in a finding that sexual harassment occurred; 

Number of complaints in which the finding of sexual harassment resulted in discipline or 
conective action; and 

v. Amount of time it took to resolve each complaint. 

Result: The Organization is a nonprofit organization; therefore, the prevention of sexual 
harassment agreed-upon procedure does not apply. 

We were engaged by Options, lnc. and Affiliates to perform this agreed-upon procedures 
engagement and conducted our engagement in accordance with attestation standards established by 
the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and applicable standards of Governtnent 
Auditing Standards. We were not engaged to and did not conduct an examination or review 
engagement, the objective of which would be the expression of an opinion or conclusion, 
respectively, on those CIC areas identified in the SAUPs. Accordingly, we do not express such an 
opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might have come 
to our attention that would have been reported to you. 

We are required to be independent of Options, lnc. and Affiliates and to meet our other ethical 
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements related to our agreed-upon 
procedures engagement. 

This report is intended solely to describe the scope of testing performed on those CiC areas 
identificd in the SAUPs, and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or 
compliance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. Under Louisiana 
Revised Statute (R.S.) 24:513, this report is distributed by the LLA as a public document. 

December 29, 2023 
Metairie, Louisiana 
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LOUISIANA COMPLIANCE QUESTIONNAIRE 
(For Audit Engagements of Quasi-Public Agencies) 

 (Date Transmitted) 

Bernard 8 Franks. A Corporation of CPA's 

4141 Veterans Boulevard. Suite 313  

Metairie. La 70002  

In connection with your audit of our financial statements as of June 30th. 2023 and for the year ended 
June 30'h. 2023 for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to the fair presentation of our financial 
staternents in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, 
to assess our internal control structure as a part of your audit:  and to review our compliance with 
applicable laws and regulations, we confirm. to the best of our knowledge and belief, the following 
representations. These representations are based'on the information available to us as of October 27.  
2023(date cornpleted/date of the representations). 

PART I. Agency Profile 

1. Name and address of the organization. 

OPTIONS, Inc 
19362 W. Shelton Rd. 
Harnmond, La 70401 

2. List names, addresses, and telephone numbers of entity officials. Include elected/appointed members 
of the governing board, chief executive and fiscal officer. and legal counsel. 

See attached 

3. Period of time covered by this questionnaire. 

July 1s1, 2022 to June 36^, 2023 

4. The entity has been organized under the following provisions of the Louisiana Revised Statute(s) 
(R.S.) and, if applicable, local resolutions/ordinances. 

Yes, the entity has been organized as non-profit under Louisiana (R S.) 12. 

5. Briefly describe the public services provided. 

Services are provided for citizens with developmental disabilities. 

6. Expiration date of current elected/appointed officials' terms. 
June 30th, 2024 

Part II. Federal, State, and Local Awards 

7. We have detailed for you the amount of federal, state and local award expenditures for the fiscal year, 
by grant and grant year. 

Yes [ x ] No [ ] N/A [ ] 

8. All transactions relating to federal grants have been properly recorded within our accounting records 
and reported to the appropriate federal grantor officials. 

Yes [ x] No [ ] N/A [ ] 



9. All transactions relating to state grants have been properly recorded within our accounting records and 
reported to the state grantor officials. 

Yes [ x ] No [ ] N/A [ ] 

10 All transactions relating to local grants have been properly recorded within our accounting records 
and reported to the appropriate local grantor officials. 

Yes[x] No[ I N/A [ 

11. The reports filed with federal agencies are properly supported by books of original entry and 
supporting documentation. 

Yes [x] No [ ] N/A [ ] 

12. The reports flled with state agencies are properly supported by books of original entry and supporting 
documentation. 

Yes [x] No [ ] N/A [ ] 

13. The reports filed with local agencies are properly supported by books of original entry and supporting 
documentation. 

Yes[x] No[ ] N/A [ ] 

14. We have complied with all applicable compliance requirernents of all federal prograrns we administer, 

Yes [ x ] No [ ] N/A [ 

15. We have complied with all applicable specific requirements of all state programs we administer, to 
include matters contained in the grant awards. 

Yes[x] No[ ] N/A[ ] 

16. We have cornplied with all applicable specific requirements of all local programs we administer. to 
include matters contained in the orant awards. 

Yes [ x ] No [ ] N/A [ ] 

17. We have provided you with all communications from grantors concerning noncompliance with or 
deficiencies in administerinc grant programs. 

Yes [x] No[ ] N!A[ ] 

Part III. Public Records 

18. We are familiar with the Public Records Act and have made available to the public those records as 
required by R.S. 44:33. 

Yes [ ] No [ ] NIA [ x ] 



Part IV. Open Meetings 

19. Our meetings, as they relate to public funds, have been posted as an open meeting as required by 
R.S. 42:11 throuch 42:28 (the open meetings law). Note: Please refer to Attorney General Opinion 
No. 13-0043 and the guidance in the publication "Open Meeting FAQs," available on the 
Legislative Auditors website to determine whether a non-profit agency is subject to the open 
meetings law. 

Yes [ ] No [ N/A [ x ] 

Part V. Budget 

20. For each federal grant, we have filed with the appropriate grantor agency a comprehensive budget 
for those grants that included the purpose and duration. 

Yes [x ] No [ ] N/A [ 

21. For each grant received from the state, we have filed with the appropriate grantor agency a 
comprehensive budoet for those grants that included the purpose, durafion. specific goals and objectives, 
and measures of performance. 

Yes [x ] No [ ] N/A [ ] 

22. For each local grant, we have filed with the appropriate grantor agency a comprehensive budget for 
those grants that included the purpose and duration. 

Yes [ x ] No [ ] N/A [ ] 

Part VI. Reporting 

23. We have had our financial statements audited in a timely manner in accordance with R.S. 24:513. 
Yes [ x ] No [ ] N/A [ ] 

24. We did not enter into any contracts that utilized state funds as defined in R.S. 39:72.1 A. (2): and that 
were subject to the public bid law (R.S. 38:2211, et seq.), while the agency was not in cornpliance with 
R.S. 24:513 (the audit law). 

Yes [ ] No [ ] N/A [x ] 

25. We have complied with R.S. 24.513 A. (3) regarding disclosure of compensation, reimbursements, 
benefits and other payments to the agency head, political subdivision head, or chief executive officer. 

Yes [x ] No [ ] N/A [ 

26. We have complied with R.S. 24:515.2 regarding reporting of pre- and post- adjudication court costs. 
fines and fees assessed or imposed; the amounts collected; the amounts outstanding: the amounts 
retained; the amounts disbursed, and the amounts received from disbursements. 

Yes [ ] No [ NiA [ x ] 

The previous responses have been made to the best of our belief and knowledge. We have disclosed to 
you all known noncornpliance of the foregoing laws and regulations. as well as any contradictions to the 



foregoing representations. We have made available to you documentation relating to the foregoing laws 
and regulations. 

We have provided you with any communications from regulatory agencies or other sources concerning 
any possible noncompliance with the foregoing laws and regulations. including any communications 
received between the end of the period under examination and the issuance of this report We 
acknowledoe our responsibility to disclose to you, the Legislative Auditor, and the applicable state grantor 
agencyiagencies anv known poncompliance that may occur subsequent to the issuance of your report. 

< ,1 . 

Date 
.; 

Secretary/re-a-5  

± t I.- ‘) .-41 Treac, ire:411A I i l L? 3 Date 
j-, 

President  71/1?/.2t Date 
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